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To the Members of Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated: )
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The Director's report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have's ¢
report in this regard. '
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis- of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue

as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required q draw N

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, {f2such

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the\e udit
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the members of Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended).

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fy The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
is as stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended),

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure Il wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position

as at 31 March 2024; AONBHDIg
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contra _t"s;:’{f(ur
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024; '1
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 40(ii) (A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any persons or entity, including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or investin other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 40(ii) (B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any persons or entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘'Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024;

and

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on 01 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books
of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that,
audit trail feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software SAP §/4 HANA to
log any direct data changes, as described in note 40(ix) to the financial statements. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such feature is enabled.

Chatiore]

lip/Jain
Partner

Membership No.: 5603498

r Chandiok & Co LLP
Accountants
istration No.: 001076N/N500013

UDIN: 24503498BKFQAPT7207 &

Place: New Delhi
Date: 06 May 2024
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Annexure | referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, and capital work-in-
progress.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress have been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification programme
adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in Note 38 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a warking
capital limit in excess of Rs. 500 lakhs by banks based on the security of current assets. The
quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the
Company with such banks and such returns/statements are in agreement with the books of
account of the Company for the respective periods, which were subject to audit/review.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the vyear.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

(Iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed ;b8
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Aczéﬁ 2 n’éé‘%.;

v)

()
o

of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 3/of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

(vi)  The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representali
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 1 _' of the
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Com anies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by oufzaudit.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xiij  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have
an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act. However, the Company
has an internal audit system which, in our opinion, is commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b)We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b} Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any Core Investment Company.

(xvi) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions ,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as
and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or ot !D_ﬂi’lt:?\
ongoing project as at the end of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clausg@xx) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company. "y ’
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For W r Chandiok & Co LLP
C‘h ered JAccountants

bership No.: 503498 = -
UDIN: 24503498BKFQAP7207 050 ACC>

Place: New Delhi
Date: 06 May 2024
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Annexure Il

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement criteria established by the
Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquis ifion; e or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statem _ﬁ;s.’ o
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Kajaria
Sanitaryware Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note of the ICA.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Partner
Membership No.: 503498
UDIN: 24503498BKFQAP7207

Place: New Delhi
Date: 06 May 2024



Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited
CIN- U26914DL2012PTG236084
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
g 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASBBETS
Mon-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 4.436.07 4,568.09
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 10,86 :
(c) Intangible assets 4 - 0.29
(d) Other Financial assets 5 3809 30.72
(2) Mon-current tax assels (net) B 4047 133.22
(N Other non-current assets 7 1.50 =
Total non- current assets 4,626.99 4,732.32
Current asszis
(a) Inventorias B 1,558.96 2,040.55
(b) Financial asseis
(i) Trade receivables 9 205575 1,821.73
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 3.52 3.51
(iii) Other financial assets ] - 0.66
{c) Other current assets 7 £9.79 65.62
Total current assets 3,678.02 3.932.07
Total assets 8,205,01 8,664,309
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equily share capital 1 1,260.00 1,260.00
{b) Other equity 12 . 1,821.84 1385.11
Total equity 3,081.84 2,645.11
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 13 2,600.00 3,700.00
(b) Provisions 14 15.30 24,85
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (Met) 15 453.31 43015
Total non- current liabilities 3,068.61 4,15510
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 13 200.49 20117
(il) Trade payables 16
- Tolal Outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises; and 483.47 105.13
- Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro and small enterprises B09.83 BE6.87
(iiiy Other financial liabilities 17 203.33 21562
(b) Other current liabilities 18 353,73 291.11
{c) Provisions 14 3.7 13.43
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 18A - 80.85
Total current liabilities 2,054,568 1,864.18
Total liabilities : 5,123.18 6,019.28
Total equity and liabilities 8,205.01 5,664.39
Summary of material accounting policies and other 1-41
explanatory information
As par ourjeport of even date attached For and on behalf of the board of direclors
Fzr/ alker|Chandiok & Co LLP of Kajarla Sanitaryware Private Limited
arter untants

Firm's redistration no. 001076N/N500013
(L=
—%
! . MMQM
Asng’l‘i'_l(ajeﬂﬁ—/ Rishi Kajaria Ajaykumar Maganlal Marvania
Biretlor

/o N Direclor Wholetime Director
ey Nt h DIN 273877 DIN 228455 DIN 0643088

\&\ A
Date : 06 May 2024 \\'\, ] Lot Dillp Kumar Maliwal Saurav Chakraborly
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Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited
CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084
STATEMEMNT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1 INCOME
Revenue from operations
Other income
TOTAL INCOME (1)

Il EXPEMNSES
Cost of materials consumed
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, slock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Employee benefils expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortizalion expenses
Other expanzes
TOTAL EXPENSES (Il

Wl Profit before tax { 11)
IV Tax expense:

Current Tax

Deferred tax
V' Profit for the year (lll-IV)

Yl Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined bensfit plans
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit
or loss
Total other comprehensive Income for the Year, net of tax
VIl Total comprehensive income for the year (comprising profit and other
comprehensive income for the year) (V+ VI)

VIl Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each)
(1) Basle (in Rs.)
(2) Dilited (in Rs.)

Summary of malerial accounting policies and other explanatory information

As per our report of even dale attached
For Walkgr Chandiok & Co LLP

Wartered Bocountants
\stration no. 001076N/M500013

{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Date : 08 May 2024
Place ; New Delhi

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
19 13,880.43 12,499.84
20 26.24 4947
14,009.67 12,549.31
21 1,321.74 1,351.91
3.433,04 2,818.04
22 485.55 (240.86)
23 3.484.91 3.412.00
24 285,22 312.20
25 283,50 272.66
26 4,142.77 3,977.25
13,446.73 11,903.20
562.94 646.11
27
122.20 79.02
2316 4844
417.58 518.65
25,61 7.31
(6.46) {1.84)
19.16 5.47
436.73 524,13
28
a3 4,12
3.3 412
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Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited
CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjusted for :

Depreciation and amorlisation

Interast income

Met gain on foreign currency transaction and translation
Insurance Claim

Excess Provision Written Back

Finance costs

Bad Debts 7

Loss on disposal of Properly, Plant and Equipment (net)

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

Working Capital Adjusted for :
Trade & Other Receivables
Inventaries

Trade Payable

Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions

Cash Generated from Operations
Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refund (net)
MNet Cash flow generated from operating activities - A

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING A

Purchase of property plant and equipment (including
increase in Capital-work-in-progress, intangible assets and
capital vendor)

Proceeds from sale of PPE

Interest Received

Net Cash flow used in Investing Activities - B

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings
Repayment of Short Term Borrowings (Net)

Interest Paid
MNet Cash flow used in Financing Activities - C

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents- (A+B+C)
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginnning of the year

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of lhe year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
Cash on hand
Cash and cash equivalents considered In the cash flow statement

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

562.94 645.11
293.50 272.66
{3.84) (10.32)
(1.24) =
(18.67) -
(5.49) -
285,22 312.20
16.74 B
0.02 (30.07)
566.24 544,47
1,129.18 1,1980.58
(236.40) 229.43
481.59 (216,97)
321.30 78.80
(12.28) (17.75)
60.96 20.46
(19.37) 0.88
595.80 94.83
1,724 .98 1,286.41
{60.85) 39.80
1,644.13 1,325.21
(172.44) (229.39)
0.38 65.05
3.84 10,32
(168.23) (154.02)
(1,100.00) (800.00)
(90.68) (57.97)
(285.22) (312.20)
(1,475.90) {(1,170.17)
0.00 1.02
3.51 2,50
3.51 3.51
3.52 3.51
3.52 3.51




Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited
CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Note 1 The above Statement of cash flows has been prepared In accordance with the ‘Indirect method’ as set outin Indian Accounting Standard -

7 on 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

Note 2 Disclosures as required in terms of Amendment to Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" related to the change in financial liabilities arising

from financing activity Is as below :

Particulars Current Non Current
Borrowings Borrowings Total
Net Debt as on 01 Apr'22 349.14 4,500.00 4,849.14
Cash Flows
Proceeds - - .
Re-payments (57.97) (800.00) (857.97)
Balance as on 31 March 2023 29117 3,700.00 3,991.17
GCash Flows
Proceeds - - -
Ra-paymenis (90.68) (1,100.00) {1,190.68)
Balance as on 31 March 2023 200.49 2,600.00 2,800.49
Summary of Material Accounting Policies and other explanatory 141 .

information
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KAJARIA SAMITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U26814DL2012PTC2 36004
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unlass otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital
As al As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Issued, subscribed and pald up capital (Refer nota 12)
Balance al the baginning of tho yoar 1,280.00 1.260.00
Changes during the year - -
Balanca at the end of the year ‘I‘EEU.IB 1,260.00
b} Other equlty
Othar Equity
Parliculars Total other agquity
Retained sarmings

Balance as at 1 April 2022 860,99 BED.9%
Prolil for the yaar 51865 518.65
Othar cormprahensive income for the year, nel of Tax

Remaasuraman| of defined benafil plans 547 5.47
As At 31 Mareh 2023 1385.11 1385.11
Profil for the year 417.58 417.58
Ohar comprehansive Income for the year, net of Tax

Rermeasurement of dafined banefit plans 19.15 1915
As At 31 March 2024 1621.84 182194
Summary of Matarial Accounting Policies and other explanalory information 141
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KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

1

Corporate information

KAJARIA SANITARYWARE FRIVATE LIMITD ("KSPL" or “the Company’) is a private limited
Company domiciled in India and was incorporated on 18 May 2012, The Company is subsidiary
Company of Kajaria Bathware Pvt Ltd and step subsidiary of Kajaria Ceramics Limited. The
registered office of the Company is located at J-1/B-1 Extension, Mohan Coop Ind Estate, Mathura
Road, New Delhi-110044, India.

The Company has forayed into manufacturing and trading of Sanitaryware items. The Company
started its operations in the year 2014.. The plant of the Company is located at Morbi (Gujarat). It has
manufacturing capacity of 7.80 lacs pieces per annum.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorised in accordance with a
resolution of Board of Directors on 06 May, 2024,

Application of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are authorized have
been considered in preparing these financial statements.

2.1 Standards issued but not effective

In March 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amended certain Ind AS as explained below:

a. Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - the amendment prescribes disclosure
of material accounting policies instead of significant accounting policies. The impact of
the amendment on the Financial Statements is expected to be insignificant basis the
preliminary evaluation.

b. Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - the
amendment added definition of accounting estimate and clarifies what is accounting
estimate and treatment of change in the accounting estimate and accounting policy.
There is no impact of the amendment on the Financial Statements basis the preliminary
evaluation,

¢ Ind AS 12 - Income taxes - the definition of deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability
is amended to apply initial recognition exception on assets and liabilities that does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. There is no impact of
the amendment on the Financial Statements basis the preliminary evaluation.

The above amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1st
April, 2023,

The amendments under Indian Accounting Standards, effective from 1 April 2022, do
not have any material impact on the Company.

2.2 Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

A. Basis of preparation of financial statements:




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.

Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and
amortised costs basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured
at fair value, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (X/Rs.), which is
also its functional currency and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes
have been rounded off to the nearest two decimals in lakhs as per the requirement of
Schedule 111 to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule
11l to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and the time between
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained dits operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to
operate as a going concern.

B. Overall considerations

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and
measurement basis summarized below.

These accounting policies have been used throughout all periods presented in the
standalone financial statements.

o

Significant accounting policies
a Currentversus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset/liability is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed or settled in normal operating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised /settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

e @ @

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024,

b. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
Company recognises revenue at the point in time, when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer depending upon the terms of sale with the customers.

When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the
balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment,

Revenue includes only the gross inflows of economic benefits, received and receivable by the
Company, on its own account. Amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as goods and
service tax is excluded from revenue,

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using effective interest method.

c. Inventories

Raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, packing materials, stores and spares, stock-
in-trade and other products are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

In determining the cost of raw materials, packing materials, stock-in-trade, stores and spares
and other products, weighted average cost method is used. Cost of inventory comprises all
costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax
authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location
and condition.

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of raw materials, packing
materials, an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

d. Property, plant and equipment

Measurement and recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial

recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are
carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment separately, if the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item
of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of
the remaining item.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price
including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the
initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of
replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses
directly attributable to new manufacturing facility during its construction period are
capitalised if the recognition criteria are met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and




KAJARIA SAN ITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.
drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalised under relevant heads of
property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalised at cost and depreciated over their
useful life. Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

al worl-in-pro capital nces

Capital work in progress includes construction stores including material / equipment /
services, etc. received at site for use in the projects. All revenue expenses incurred during
construction period, which are exclusively attributable to acquisition / construction of fixed
assets, are capitalised at the time of commissioning of such assets. Cost of assets not ready
for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress.

Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
Balance Sheet date are disclosed as per requirement of Schedule III,

Depreciation
Depreciation on each part of an item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the

Straight Line Method (SLM) based on the useful life of the asset as estimated by the
management and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as per the requirement of
Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 except on some assets, where useful life has been
taken based on external / internal technical evaluation as given below:

Particulars Useful lives
Plant and machinery 8 and 15 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The useful lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment
and the depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each financial year, If any of these
expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-
recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

e. Intangible Assets
Measurement and recognition
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following

initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Amortisation




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.

Summaty of significant accounting policies and othet explanatory information to the standalone

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a Straight Line basis over the estimated
useful economic life. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amortisation period and method for an
intangible asset is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Costs relating to computer software are capitalised and amortised on straight line method
over their estimated useful economic life.

De-recognition

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the
de-recognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

f. Research and development costs ,
Expenditure on research is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. Expenditure on
development which does not meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset is
recognised as an expense when it is incurred,

Items of property, plant and equipment utilized for research and development are
capitalised and depreciated in accordance with the policies stated for Property, Plant and
Equipment.

g Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection
with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost,

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised, if any. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur,

h. Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition:

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are
recorded in the functional currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency
amount, the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency
at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

wement of foreign curre i reporti :
Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange
rates. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that
are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is measured.




KAJARIA SAN ITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.
Summatry of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024,
Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

i Taxesonincome

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the
period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid/ recovered to/from the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity/other comprehensive
income is recognised under the respective head and not in the statement of profit and loss.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets are offset against current fax liabilities if, and only if, a legally
enforceable right exists to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention gither to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Tax
relating to items recognised directly in equity/other comprehensive income is recognised
in respective head and not in the statement of profit & loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED. -
Summary of significant accounting policies and othet explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

js

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short term employee benefits and they are recognised in the period in which
the employee renders the related service. The Company recognises the undiscounted
amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services
rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

Post-employment benefits:
Defined contribution plans:

The Company makes payments made to defined contribution plans such as provident fund
and employees’ state insurance. The Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

II. Defined benefit plans:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The net interest cost is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes
in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service
cost,

ther long-term empl enefits:

Other long-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss as and when they accrue. The Company determines the liability using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations carried out as at the balance sheet
date. Actuarial gains and losses in respect of such benefits are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss. .

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments
of the Company.




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.
Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2024,

L

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost. i

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

e apresent obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;

e apresentobligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet
date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average numbers of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
share

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.
Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2024.

b)

basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flows characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to

_the acquisition of the financial asset. However, Trade Receivables that does not contain a

significant financial component are measured at transaction price.
Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in below
categories:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an
irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its
business model.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently
fair valued through profit or loss.
De-recognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss, the calculation of which is based on
historical data, on the financial assets that are trade receivables or contract revenue
receivables and all lease receivables.

Financial liabilities

Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities,
including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.
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KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.
Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 108. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. '

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profitand loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts,
interest rate swaps, full currency swaps and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its
foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.
Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly
to statement of profit and loss.

p Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on
internal /external factors, that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating unit is estimated. If such
recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less
than its carrying amount. The carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and
the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is
reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognised are
accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

q Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and certain
investments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurementas a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active marlets for identical assets or
liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

r Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements, Estimates and assumptions
are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods:

[n particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant
judgements, estimates and assumptions are required. Further information on each of
these areas and how they impact the various accounting policies are described below and




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.
Summary of significant accounting policies and othet explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.
also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes in estimates are accounted
for prospectively.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims
against the Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their
nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events
occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of
estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

(b) Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the
present value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

(c) Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets
at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets, Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the
utility of assets.

(d) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance
sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.

(e) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgments in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.’

(f) Estimation of current tax and deferred tax

Management judgement is required for the calculation of provision of income- taxes
and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet
date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may
differ from actual outcome which could lead to adjustment to the amounts reported in
these financial statements.

(g) Right-of-use assets and lease liability:

The Company has exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the no
cancellable term of the lease, together with the impact of options to extend or
terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised. Where the rate implicit
in the lease is not readily available, an incremental borrowing rate is applied. This
incremental borrowing rate reflects the rate of interest that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar nature and value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. Determination of the incremental borrowing rate requires
estimation.




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED.
Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.
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KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to th
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 4 : Intangible assets

Softwares
Gross carrying amount :
As at 1 April 2022 . 5.88
Additions -
As at 31 March 2023 5.88
Addilions -
As at 31 March 2024 5.88
Accumulated amortisation ;
As at 1 April 2022 5.59
Amorlisation charge for the year -
Disposal "
As at 31 March 2023 5.59

- e

Amortisation charge for the year 0.29
As at 31 March 2024 5.88
Net carrying amount :
As at 31 March 2024 -
As at 31 March 2023 0.28




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U26814DL2012PTC236084

Summary of materlal accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

MNen-Current

Current

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Mote §: Other Financial Assets
Unsecured, Gonsldered good- (at amortised cost)
Security deposits 38.09 3072 - -
Claims Receivable - - - 0.66
38.09 30.72 - 0.686
38.09 30.72 . 0.66

# Securily Deposit are non derivalive financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the Company, The carrying value may be affected

by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties
Mo loan are dug from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any ofher person

Note 6: Non-current tax assets (net) Non-Current

Current

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current lax assets (net) 4047 133.22
40.47 133.22

Note 7: Other assets Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 3 March 2023
Prepaid expenses - - 5.42 4.85
Advance to contractors and suppliers 1.50 - = .
Advance to employees - - 51.36 EB.12
Balance with statutory authorilies - - 3.01 2.58
1.50 - 59.79 65.62




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U28914DL2012PTC236084 :
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory Information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
. {Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwlse statad)

Mote 8 : Inventories (Valuad at lower of cost or net realisable valua) Current
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Raw malerizls 68.81 78.29
Work-in-prograss 865.36 1,285.68
Finished goods 282.49 380.18
Slock-in-lrade 262.44 22087
Stores and spares 51.79 43,25
Packing malerials 28.09 23,18

1,568.06 2,040.55

{Inventories have been valued in accordance with accounling palicy no. 2.2.C (c)

Mote 9 :Trade receivables Currant
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Considered goods - unsecured 2,05575 1,821.73
Credil Impaired - 6.70
Less: Allowance of expacted credit loss g (6.70)
2,065,75 1,821.73
: As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Not Due Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment Total
Less than 6 6 months- 1 year | 1-2 years| 2-3 years More Than 3
months years
(i) Undisputed Trade Recelvables Considerad Good = 1,950.89 47,24 47.45 - 10.17 2,055.75
(i) Undisputed Trade Recelvables- Credit Impalred - - - a . 5 2
Less : Allowance for expected credit losses = - - . - - -
= 1,950.89 47,24 47.45 - 10.17 I 2,055.75
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Mot Due Outstanding for the following pericds from the due date of payment Total
Less than 6 6 months- 1 year | 1-2 years| 2-3 years More Than 3
months years
(i} Undisputed Trade Recelvables Considerad Good = 1,726.15 67.75 - - 27.83 1,821.73
(i) Undisputed Trade Recelvables- Credit impaired - - - - - 6.70 6.70
Less ; Allowance for expected credit losses - - - - : 16.70)]- 6.70
1,726.15 67.75 - - 27.83 1,821.73
o trade or alher receivable are due from direclors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any ather person.
All amounts ara short-lerm. The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasenable approximation of fair value.
Note 10 : Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 3.52 3.51
3.52 3.51

Note =
There ars no repalriation restriction with regard fo cash and cash equivalents as the end of the raporting perod and previous reporling period.
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KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statemt
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 12 : Other Equity

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,385.11 860.99
Profit for the year ; 417.58 518.65
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax 19.15 5.47
Balance at the end of the year - 1,821.84 1,385.11

Nature and purpose of reserve

Retained earnings

The retained earnings represents the undistributed surplus of the Company earned from its business
operations and includes other comprehensive income generated on remeasurement of defined
benefit plan.




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U26014DL2012PTC236084

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Hote 13 : Borrowing

Nop-Currant Current

As at Asatl As at As at
3 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Warking capltal facilllios

From banks (sacured) . - 200.49 20047
Inter corporate loans (unsecurad) * 2,600.00 3,700.00 - =
Total borrowlngs 2,600.00 Si?ﬂd.nﬂ 200.43 291,17
TERMS OF BORROWINGS

WORKING CAPITAL FACILITIES

Secured against Hypolhecalion of entire raw malerials, stock In procasss, stores & sparas, packing materials, finished goods and book dabls
of Ihe company, both present & future. Rate of Interes! is 0.65% above MCLR. Presenl inleres! rate is 8.95% p.a. ( Pravious Year - 9.45%

P8

* Inter corporate loans:
Wis Kajaria Ceramics Limiled - tha ulimale holding company, baaring interast @ 8% p.a.

Other Mote :
() Working capital facility is further secured by guaranias of Uilimate Helding Company, Directers and Sharahelders of tha Company.

{li) The above loans have been utiised as per the purpose for these loans were sanclionad,
{liiy The Company has not defaulted in repayment of interest during tha currenl financial year. Further, there have been no defaull in
repayment of lean and ne breaches in tha financial covenanis of any inlerest-bearing leans and borrowing in the currenl year,

Note 14 : Provisions

Mon-Current Current

As at As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Provision for gratuily - (refer note 34) 15,30 24.95 3 13.43
15.30 24.96 371 13.43
——
Note 15 ; Deferred tax liabllities
Az al As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Daferrad tax liabilies on :
Temporary diffarences of book and lax depreciation of proparty, plant and squipmant 458 28 442,07
Deferred tax asseis on @
Unabsorbed dapreciation . .
Other { Grafuily) 497 11.92
4.97 11.82
Detamad lax llabifties (nat) 463,31 430,15
Movement In deferred tax Habilities_and deferred tax assets
Property, plant  Unabsorbed Others Total
and equipments  depreciation
As at 1 April 2022 431.72 (40.67) - 9.44 381.71
Chargedficredited) to the statemant of Profi or Loss 10.35 40.57 {2.48) 48.44
Chargedf{cradited) io clher comprehensive income - % - -
As at 31 March 2023 442.07 - (11.92) 430,156
Charged o lhe statement of Prefit or Loss 16.21 - 6.95 2318
Charged to other comprehensive income - - . .
As at 31 March 2024 468.28 - {4.97) 453,01




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U26814DL2012PTC236084

Summary of material accounting pollcies and other axplanatory informatlon to the financial statement for the year endad 31 March 2024

(Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 16 : Trade payables

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade payables
- Tolal cutstanding dues of micro and small enlerprises; and 483.47 105.13
- Tolal outslanding dues of craditors ather than micro and small enlerprises 800.83 BE.47
1.283.30 972.00
Mota:

Ml amounts are short-term, The net carrying valua of Irade payable is conslderad a reasonable approximation of fair value,

As at 31 March 2024
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payments
Rapilens Hilkisged Less tham 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Ware lhand Tetal
Dues years
(i) MSME = 483.47 - . - 483.47
(i} Others B 800.85 - .98 - 809.03
As at 31 March 2023
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payments
Pty KiakHles Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Midtn thgd Total
Dues WEars
(1) MSME - 105.13 2 - - 105,13
{11} Others - 860.54 . - 6.33 | 066.87
As at As at
Note 17 ; Other financial liabilities 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Craditars for capilal goods 277 1.10
Intarast bearing deposils from cusiomars 46.85 47,50
Outstanding Liabililies 18372 167.02
Employea Payabla 153,72 154,46
Other - 12.56
203.33 215,62
—
Break-up of financial liabilities carrded at amortised cost
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Borrowings {Mon-Current) 2,600.00 3,700.00
Barrawings {Currant) 200,49 20117
Trade Payable 1,293.30 972.00
Other financial liabilllies 203.33 21562
4,297.12 6,178.78
Mote 18 : Other Current liabilities
As at As at
s 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advanca from Cuslomers 142.45 114.93
Slalutory Dues Fayabla 211.27 17617
353.73 281,11

Hote 184 : Current tax llabllities {net)

As al As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Currant tax lisbilifias (net) - B80.85

- 80.85




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 Mai
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 19 : Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sale of products - Sanitaryware and other allied products 13,980.43 12,499.84
13,980.43 12,499.84
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS-115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers', are as follows:
a) Disaggregation of revenue:
Revenue arises mainly from the sale of manufactured and traded goods
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from sale of Sanitaryware Products 13,980.43 12,499.84
'Total 13,980.43 12,499.84

1. Sale of product are net of discounts amounting to Rs. 868.76 Lakhs (31st March 2023 : Rs.889.17 Lakhs) which has been issued to
customer after invoices,

(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers is as below:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Contract liabilities related to sale of goods

Advance from customers 142.45 114.94
Security deposits from customers 46.85 47.50
189.30 162.44

(c) Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liabilities are on
account of the advance payment received .from customer for which performance obligation has not yet been completed. The
performance obligation is satisfied when control of the goods or services are transferred o the customers based on the contractual
terms. The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goods are for a shorter
duration. Further, there are no contracts for sale of services wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to which transaction price
has been allocated.

Payment terms with customers vary depending upon the contractual terms of each contract and generally falls in the range of 0 to 45
days from the completion of performance obligation.
There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.

(d) Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities:
The change in contract liabilities (interest bearing deposit from customers and advances received from customer) during the year

Particulars Year ended Year ended
' 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Contract liabilities (Advance from customers)

Opening balance 114.94 87.73
Revenue recognised during the year 114.94 87.73
Addition during the year (net) 142.45 114.94

Closing balance P 142.45 114.94




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 May
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 20 : Other Income

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Interest Income on:

- Fixed deposits with banks 112 1.28
- Refund on Income Tax 272 9.04
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation 1.24 3.06
Other income:
- Excess provisions/(liabilities written back) 5.49 554
- Insurance claim 18.67 0.49
- Gain on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) - 30.07
29.24 49.47
Note 21 : Cost of materials consumed
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Body Material 581.28 536.06
Glaze, frits and chemicals 324.21 420,39
Packing Material 416.25 395.46
1,321.74 1,351.91
Note 22 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Opening Stock

Finished goods 380.18 144,12
Stock-in-trade 228.97 397.35
Work-in-Progress 1,285.68 1,113.50
Total-A 1,895.83 1,654.97
Closing stock
Finished goods 282.49 380.18
Stock-in-trade ' 26244 229.97
Work-in-Progress 865.36 1,285.68
Total-B 1,410.28 1,895.83
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress (A-B) 485.55 (240.86)
Note 23 : Employee benefits expense
Year ended Year ended
; 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salary, wages and bonus (including management charges) 3,465.64 3,394.31
Contribution to provident fund and other funds* 577 526
Staff Welfare expenses 13.50 12.43
3,484.91 3,412.00

* Refer Note 34 for details




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 Mai

Note 24 : Finance Costs

Interest Expenses
Interest on unsecured loans
Other ancillary borrowing costs

Note 25 : Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer to note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer to note 4)

Note 26 : Other expenses

Power and fuel
Stores and spares consumed
Repair and Maintenance:
- Buildings
- Plant and equipment
- Others
Payment to auditor's as:
- Auditors
- For re-imbursement of expense
Legal and professional expenses
Communication Expense
Rent
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion
Freight, handling and distribution expenses
Rates and taxes
Printing and stationary
Insurance charges
Security Charges
Travelling and conveyance
Vehicle running and maintenance expenses

Met Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Net)
Provision for expected credit loss

Miscellaneous Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
Bad Debts

{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
15.73 12.47
247,12 208.43
22.37 1.29
285.22 312.20
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
293.21 272,66
0.29 -
293.50 272.66
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,429,652 1,763.71
493.93 477.14
9.60 10.94
73.37 96.56
1.19 0.25
8.00 10,00
- 1.00
27.98 20.28
0.97 1.89
25.00 3.49
827.36 518.78
1,171.47 1,015.75
0.81 3.95
5,89 3.60
14.09 11.43
374 313
6.54 10.08
6.60 6.68
0.02 -
- 6.70
4.27 267
15.68 9.22
16.74 -
4,142.77 3,977.25




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 Mai
{Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

MNote -27 Income Tax Expense

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(a) Income-tax expense debited to statement of profit and loss

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year 122.20 79.02
Total current tax expense 122.20 79,02

Deferred tax

Deferred tax charge/(credit) for the year 23.16 48.44
23.16 48.44
Total tax expense 145.36 127.48

(b) Income-tax expense charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income
Currant tax
Current tax charge/(credit) for the year . (6.48) (1.84)

(6.46) (1.84)

(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit befare tax 562.94 646.11
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25,168%(31 March 2022: 25.168%) 141.68 162.61
Expenses not allowed as deduction 3.68 2.35
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (unabsorbed depreciation} - [27.50)
145.36 127.46

Note -28 Earning per share
Earning per share

Earnings per share (EPS) as per Ind AS-33 is calculated as under

Basic and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year allribulable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighled average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number
of equily shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflecls the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Er:f:rteitrtlribulabls to equity holders of the Company for basis earnings (Rs. In Lakhs) for 417.58 518.65
Weighted Average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted earnings per 1,26,00,000 1,26,00,000
Share (Nos.)

Earning Per Share

Basic (Rs.) 3 412
Diluted (Rs.} M 412
Face value per share (Rs) 10 10

* There no dilutive potential equity shares as the end of the reporting year and previous year.
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KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084

summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the ye

Note -31 Related party disclosures

A List of related parties

ar ended 31 March 2024
{Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Name of the related party
Kajaria Balhware Private Limited

Kajaria Ceramics Limited
Kerovit Global Private Limited

Relationship

Holding Company

Ultimate Holding Company
Subsidiary of Holding Company
Director (Key managerial personnel)

Mr. Ajay Maganblal Marvania

B Transactions during the peried! year:

Kajaria Bathware Private Limited
Salary, wages and bonus (including management charges)
Advertisement, publicity, sales promotion and Dizplay

Rent
Reimburesement of Expenes/ (Claim of Expenses Incurred)

Kajaria Ceramics Limited

Interest paid (including interest capilalised)
Loan repay (net)

Rent

Sale of Product

Kerovit Glohal Private Limited
Sale of Product

Mr. Ajay Maganlal Marvania
Remuneration Paid

¢ Balance outstanding at the end of the year

Ultimate Holding Company - Kajaria Ceramics Limited
- Borrowings

Kerovit Global Private Limited
Sale of Goods

Wir. Ajay Maganial Marvania
Salary payable

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

1,800.00 1,800,00
800.00 502,00
E 0.02
(30.66) (6.03)
24712 298,43
(1,100.00) (800.00)
" 3.47
0.684 =
290
66.00 66.00
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2,600,00 3,700.00
2,90
5560 5.60




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084
Summary of material aceounting policies and other explanatory Information to the financlal statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Note - 32

Financlal risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise , trade, loans and olher payables, securily deposits, employee liabilities. The Cempany's
principal financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and shori-ierm deposits/ loan.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior
management is reviewing financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework. The Company's management ensure that the Company’s financial risk
aclivities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies
and risk objectives. Tha management revisws and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

I, Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate bacause of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three

types of risk; interest rate risk, currency risk and cther price risk. Financial instruments affected by markel risk includee borrowings, trade payables, interest bearing
daposits, loans and derivative financial instruments.

The sensilivily analyses of the above mentioned risk in the following sections rslate lo the posilion as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuily and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-
financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

- The sensitivity of the relevant profit of loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

A, Interest rale risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt obligations with floaling interest rates. However the risk is very low due
to negligible borrowings by the Company.

Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023
Increaseldecrease | Effect on profit |Increaseldecrease in| Effect on profit
in basis points before tax basis points before tax
INR Lakhs
INR +50 (16.25) +50 -21.88
INR =50 16.25 =50 21.88

The assumed movement in basis points for the inlerest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a significantly higher
volatility than in prior years.

B. Foreign currency sensitivity
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of an exposure will flucluate because of changes in exchange rates. Foreign currency risk

senslivity Is the impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The following tables demonsirate the
sensilivity 1o a reasonably possible change in USD and EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023
Increasefdecrease Effect on profit |Increaseldecrease in| Effect on profit
in basis points before tax basis points before tax
INR Lakhs
INR. +50 - +50 0
INR -50 - =50 0

11, Credit risk




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084 E
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its ebligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade recaivables) and from its financing activities, including deposils with banks and financial institutions.

Cradit risk from investments with banks and other financial institutions is managed by the Treasury functions in accerdance with the management policles. Investments
of surplus funds are cnly made with approved counterparties who mast the appropriate rating andlor other criteria, and are only made within approved limits. The
management conlinually re-assess the Company's policy and updale as required. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therafora mitigate
financial loss through counterparty failure.

A, Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credil risk
managemenl. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit review and individual credit limils are defined in accordance with this assessment.
Cutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

At the year end the Company does not have any significant concentrations of bad debt risk other than that disclosed in note 9.

An impairment analysls is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposiire
to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Mote 39. The Company does nol hold collateral as security. The
Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdiclions and operate in largely
indapendeant markats.

-

Movement in allowance for expected credit losses on trade raceivable:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 6.70 -
Add; Allowance provided during the year 6,70
Less: allowance reversed during the year 6.70 -
Balance at the end of the year - 6.70

B. Financial instruments and cash deposits

Cradit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury depariment in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments
of surplus funds are made only with approved counterpariies.

111, Liquidity risk
The Company's objective is fo maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1to 5years > 6years Total
months
Ag at
31 March 2024 .
Borrowings 200.492 - 2,600.00 - 2,800.49
Trade payables 1.293.30 - - - 1,263.30
Other financial ligbliities 203.33 - - - 203,33
1,697.12 . 2,600.00 - 4,297.12
As at
31 March 2023
Borrowings 29117 - 3,700.00 . 3,891.17
Trade payables avz2.o0 - - - 972.00
Other financial liabilities 21562 - - - 215.62
1,478.79 - 3,700.00 . 5,178.79

IV, Excessive risk concentration

Concentralions arisa when & number of counterparties are engaged in similar business aclivities, or aclivities in the same geographical region, or have economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual ebligations to be similarly affected by changes In aconomic, political or other conditions, Concentrations
indicate the relativa sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular indusiry.

The Company’s marketing facilities are situated in different geographies. Similarly the distribution network is spread PAN India.
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KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note - 34 »

Defined Contribution Plans - General Description

Relirement banefils in the form of provident fund, superannuation fund and national pension scheme are defined conlribution schemes. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company's contribution to the provident fund Is Rs.
5.77 lacs (31 March 2023 : Rs. 5.26 lacs)

Defined Benefit Plans - General Description

Gratuity:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Gratuity Is computed as 15 days salary, for evary completed year of service or part thereof in
excess of 6 months and Is payable on retirement / termination / resignation. The benefit vests on the employee completing 5 years of service. The
Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/liability in the books of accounts on the basls of actuarial valualion as per the projected unit
credit method.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded
status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 38.38 37.53
Current service cosl 3,36 5.92
Interest cost 2.88 2.24
Benefits paid - -

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligaticns - OCI (25.61) (7.31)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year - 19.01 38.38

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and.defined benefit obligation:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Fair value of plan assels 5

38.38

Defined benefit obligation 19.01

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 19.01 38.38
Current 3.7 13.43
Non Current 15.30 24,95

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

GCurrent service cost 3.36 5.92
Interest cost 2,88 2,24
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 6.24 8.16

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions H

Actuarial (gain)/losses from changes in financial assumptions 0.16 (1.71)
Experlence adjustments (gain)/loss for plan liabities (26.77) (5.60)
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (25.61) (7.31)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plans are shown below:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Discount rate 7.25% 7.50%
Future salary increases 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition Rate 20.00% 20,00%
Retirarmenl age 60 years 60 years
Martality IALM 2012-14 IALM 201214




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption

Gratuity plan Sensitivity level Impact on Defined benefit
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assumptions
Discount rate +1% . +1% (0.75) (1.22)
-1% -1% 0.82 1.32
Future salary increases ‘ +1% +1% 0.83 1.34
-1% -1% (0.77) (1.26)
Withdrawal rate +1% +1% 0.03 0.04
-1% -1% (0.03) {0.09)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method thal exirapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are insiginificant and hence ignored.

Sensifivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payments, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expeclancy are
not applicable being a lump sum benefit an retirement.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Within next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 3.71 13.43
Belween 1 and 5 years 3.55 6.99
Beyond 5 years 11.76 17.96
Total expected payments 19.01 38.38

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 25 years (31 March 2023 : 19 Years).

Expected conlribution for next year is Rs, 5.71 lacs (Previous year Rs. 7.29 lacs)




“Ayngery xe
i BRATRIRLE Hnd SaXE] PUE 159431Ul
V/N| %T- |%9S°€T £F950°L TE8S6 YHEET [EI0L + YO ) pafojdwyg [ennde) uo winiay| 01
jaq sEUlWIEy
18N 2iqidue] =
padojdug jendey
“1eak uaaind ul syyoad ut 3 . o . ) W2 S3[Es - SA[ES 101439 S
pasea129p 01 anp AUTEl %82 |%ETY LE6FSET S9°81S %86'T [€10] = 53[E5 19N Joid 32N DY WOl 2Nl 6
SBNIIGET] U31IN7
Teaded Buppiom ol g0y | S 694907  |1E6vSZT | €98 -sjassequazmy | oo ore Sl oney zeaowmy ende) 13N| 8
2SN UIDLY 01 3NP A[UTER  reden Bunpiopm [B10L, = Sajeg 39N g :
wmad aseyaand
/ i . _ N ) saigedeq| -seseypand jipaan & ) Loy reonsty
V/N| %01- |+.L8 09'ZE6 TTLPT'8 | 98L ape1y a8esaay | ssois = saseyound ey 1aa L 2[qBAR SPEIL| L
IIpa10 19N
uinjad sajes
V/N| %IT |9%9 S8'Z¥6'T TE6YSZL | 02L > -Sa1es Jpalo s504D Rl 9
3 2 ;
_ X pe1) aBelday | M i 19A0UIN], S3|qRADaY 3PRL]
\ . Alojusau]
¥/N| %I S6'E 292951 ¥6'69T'9 | B6E 3314y plos spood jo3so) oney Jaaowin] A1ojusaulf g
“eak juaLm u siyo.d u WEE- 7 £ge’ E 5 s bﬁwswmm g mush”mhﬁmuxs oney Ainbg uo uIms
pasea1sap 03 anp Aurepy EE- |ZT0 SO'EBE'Z 59818 STD Jaployarey jald ney AUnby dl ¥
agde1aay 18yE s)yoad 19N
syuswieday sasuadxa
24 edipurig Suneiado yse)
-£Z0Z Ad Suumnpjuswided| 9%g8z- | 660 06°0TT'T ZTEOT'T | 1L0 +sjuawfed|  UON + Saxellaye oney a8eIan0] AdIAlas 1qad| €
-2 193 01 anp AJUIRy : Bsea] § 1531aU]| oag 39N = 201AI19S :
=aJ1al3g1qa( | 2192 Joj sSujutey
i : F Ambg
-£70Z Ad Sunmpausuifed| 950%- | 15T TT'SH9'Z LTT66'E | T60 P —, 3qe( 20l oney Aunbyiged| z
-3y 3qaq o3 anp fjurep f
v/N| %sI- [TTZ2 8T'+o8'T LOZER'E |6LT SaNIIqel] uaLny 51955y jualing 0nEY Jus1md| T
" F¥TEOLE
SUOSEIY (s8e%) | £zg0rgmOSE 2 2 uo se Iojeurnoua( JojeIawmpy oney ON'S
JouUBLIBA| JEaj SNOIARIJ | OJBUMIOUS( | OJRISWNN
Ipaj JUALINY

¥Z0Z USIBl LE Papua Jeak au) 10} JUSIWSYE]S [BIDUBLY B1f) 0) uoneuLojul Kiojeue|dxa Jayjo pue saidijod Bugunoooe [eusiew Jo Aewwng
+809€201dZ1021avL69ZN ~NID
A3LINT FLVAIYD JHVMALVLINYS VIAVIYA




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U26914DL2012PTC226084 I
Summary of material accounting policles and other explanatory infermation to the financlal statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

Note 36

U}

iy

Nate 37

Note 38

Note 38

Note 40

(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate social responsibility {"CSR’)

s per Seclion 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013, Schedule Vil and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company was required
to spend ¥ 15.17 Lakhs (31 March 2023 : ¥ 9.05 Lakh) for Corporate Social Responsibility activilies. The Company has incurred GSR expenditur of ¥ 15.67
Lakhs during the current financial year (31 March 2023 : 2 8.21 ) on the projecis/activities for the benefit of the public in general and in the neighbourhood of the
manufacturing facilities of the Company,

Construction/acquisilion of any asset

Paid in cash Z i
Other than cash - -
On purpeses elher than (i) above

Paid in cash - B.26
Other than cash 15.67 0.46
15.67 9.22

Payment to auditor's as:

As At 31 March As At 31 March

2024 2023
Payment to audilor's as:
= Auditors 8.00 10.00
- For re-imbursement of expense ' = 1.00

Reporting to banks
The Gompany is regular in submission of quarierly slock slalements with banks for the borrowings sanclioned agains! hypothecalion of current assels. Further,
all the quarterly slatements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial inslitulions are in agreement wilh books of accounts,

Asset pledged as security (refer note 14)

Particulars Year aended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Curren
Invenlories 1,568,096 2,040.55
Trade receivables 2,055.75 1,821.73

3,614.70 3,862.28

Additional regulalory information required by Schedule |Il of Companies Act; 2013

(i} Datails of Benami property:

No proceadings have been inillated or are pending against the Company for helding any Benami property under the Benami Transaclions {Prohibilion) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and lhe rules made lhereunder,

(il Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium:
The Company has nol advanced or loaned or Invested funds lo any othar person(s) or entily(ies), including foreign enlities {Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Inlermediary shall:

»

{a) direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persens or antilies idenlified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Company (Ullimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, securily or the like to or on behalf of the ullimale heneficiaries,

The Company hes nol recelved any fund from any person(s) or enlity(ies), including foraign entities (Funding Party) with the underslanding (whether recorded in
wiriting or otherwise) lhal the Company shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or Invest in olher persens or enlities identifizd In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ulimale
EBeneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the ullimale benaliciariEs.

{iii) Compliance with number of layers of companies:
The Gompany has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

{iv) Undisclosed income:
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as incoma during the current or previcus year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1861, thal
has not been recorded in the books of account,




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U26914DL2012PTC236084
Summary of material accounting pelicles and other explanatory information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise statad)

(v) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency:
Tha Company has nol iraded or invested in cryplo currency or virual currency during the current of previous year.

{v1) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investmant property:
The Company has not revalued lis property, plant and equipment (including right-of-uise assats) or intangible assets or both during the currenl or previcus

{vii) The Company do not have any chargas or salisfaction which is yel lo be regislered w‘-ilh Registrar of Companlas beyond the stalutery peried.
{will) The Gompany is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority

(ix) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounis)
Rules, 2014, inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounling software for mainlaining its hooks of
accounts, shall only use such accounting software which has a fealura of racording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change
made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audil trail cannot be disabled. The new requiremant is
applicable with effact from the financlal year beginning on 01 April 2023,

The Company uses SAP Si4 HANA as the primary accounting software, During the current financial year, the audit trail (edil log) feature for any direcl changes
mada at the dalabase level was nol enabled for (he accounting software SAP 5/4 HANA used for maintenance of all the accounting records by (he Company.
However, the audit trail (edit log) al the applicalion level (entered from fhe frantend by users) for lhe sccounling soflware were operaling for all relevanl
transacilons recorded in the soflware.

{x) Struck off Companles: There are no ransactions with Companias stiuck off under Seclion 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or Section 660 of the Companies
Act, 1956




KAJARIA SANITARYWARE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN- U26914DL2042PTC236084

Summary of materlal accounting policles and othar explanatery Information to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 41 The figures of the previous year have been re-classifiad accarding lo curreni year classificalion wherever raquired. The impact of the same is
nol material to the users of the financial slatements.

For and on behall of the board of directors
Kajaria Sanitaryware Private Limited
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